IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

Tallahassee, Florida

CASE NUMBER: 77,098

gaps JAN 11 1991 CLERK, SUPPEME COURF Bv\_ D Puty Clerk 

	-X
NORTHERN PALM BEACH COUNTY	:
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, a	:
drainage district of the	:
State of Florida,	:
June 1 Jan t	•
Appellant,	•
VS.	:
V <b>3</b> •	:
THE STATE OF FLORIDA, et. al.,	:
	:
Appellants.	:

Ì,

On Appeal from a Bond Validation in the Circuit Court in and for Palm Beach County, Florida Case No. C1-90-6844-AH

### APPELLANT'S INITIAL BRIEF

--X

CHARLES F. SCHOECH, ESQUIRE Florida Bar No. 183924 Caldwell & Pacetti 324 Royal Palm Way Palm Beach, Florida 33480 (407) 655-0620

###

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

This is an appeal to the Florida Supreme Court pursuant Rules to Florida Rule of Appellant Procedure, 9.030(a)(l)(B)(i), from the final order entered in the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida (the "Circuit Court" or the "trial court"), wherein the trial court failed to validate the issuance of Water Control and Improvement Bonds for Unit of Development No. 31, Program Two, of the Northern Palm Beach County Water Control District in a principal amount of not to exceed \$16,312,500.00, (the "Program Two Bonds").

The Appellant, Northern Palm Beach County Water Control District (the "District") is a political subdivision of the State of Florida, organized and existing under and by virtue of Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida, as amended and supplemented, (Ap. T.14 P.307-399) and applicable provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statutes and other applicable provisions of law (collectively the "Act").

Unit of Development No. 31 (the "Unit") was established by the Board of Supervisors of the District (the "Board") pursuant to a resolution adopted on December 28, 1988, for the purpose of draining and reclaiming the land located within the Unit.

On August 23, 1989, the Water Management Plan for the

Unit, (the "Plan"), as prepared by the Chief Engineer of the District was adopted by the Board. (Ap. T.4 P.162-208)

On September 14, 1989, the Circuit Court in In Re: Northern Palm Beach County Water Control District, Unit of Development No. 31 Case No. CL 89-9259-AO, appointed three Commissioners to prepare a Report of Commissioners (the "Report") regarding the Plan for the Unit. The Commissioners filed their Report with the Clerk of the Circuit Court on November 29, 1989.(Ap. T.7 P.211-234) The Report assessed the benefits of the Water Management Plan as to the lands within the Unit to be in the amount of \$55,000,000.00 and showed the estimated cost of construction of improvements as contained in the Plan to be less than the benefits assessed against the lands in the Unit. On December 21, 1989, the Circuit Court entered its order (the "Order") approving and confirming the Report, and confirming the benefits as to the lands within the Unit as described within the Report. (Ap. T.8 P.235-236)

In assessing benefits as to the lands within the Unit, the Report distinguishes between two separate components of the planned improvements to be constructed within the Unit pursuant to the Plan. The first component consists of the water management system, the water and sewer facilities and the exterior roadway improvements, including landscaping, and also including certain interior roadway improvements that are to be open to the general public together with associated

- 2 -

landscaping (the "Program One Improvements"); and the second component consists of all other improvements (the "Program Two Improvements"). With respect to the Program Two Improvements the Report assessed benefits against the lands in the Unit in the amount of \$18,125,000.00.

On March 28, 1990, by the duly adopted Unit of Development No. 31 Program Two Tax Resolution, the District levied a total non ad valorem assessment called a drainage tax on the lands in the Unit in proportion to the benefits to derived construction be from the of the Program Two Improvements as set forth in the Plan, in the aggregate amount of \$42,625,000.00 (consisting of an initial tax of \$18,125,000.00 plus interest in the amount of \$24,500,000.00 which is estimated to accrue the Bonds).(Ap. on T.11 P.300-302) As provided in the Act, the interest to be paid on the Bonds is not considered when determining whether the cost of improvements exceeds the benefits assessed upon the lands in the Unit. Such total drainage tax has been lawfully levied pursuant to the requirements of Section 298.36 Florida Statutes and is legal and valid in all respects.

On December 27, 1989, the Board adopted a General Bond Resolution (the "Bond Resolution") authorizing the issuance of the Bonds in order to finance the Program Two Improvements.(Ap. T.10 P.240-299) The principal amount of the Program II Bonds authorized to be issued pursuant to the Bond Resolution does not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the

- 3 -

benefits assessed with respect to the Program Two Improvements confirmed in the Order.

Pursuant to the Bond Resolution, the District, on March 28, 1990, adopted a resolution authorizing the Program Two Bonds to be issued in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed \$16,312,500.00 for the purposes of financing the Program Two improvements consisting of the construction of the on-site roadways and associated landscaping, as defined in the Bond Resolution (the "On-site Roadways"). The On-site Roadway improvements include paving, striping, signage, landscaping, irrigation, bridges, culverts, street lighting, security gate houses and secondary drainage system consisting of storm drain pipes, inlets, manholes and surface drainage.

The On-site Roadways will be public roads owned by the District and designed in accordance with the requirements of the City of Palm Beach Gardens the city wherein the project is located. The On-site Roadways will be controlled access roadways pursuant to Chapter 89-462, Laws of Florida, (Ap. T.14 P.389-399) which amended the Act in part to grant the District power to dedicate or create roads for the exclusive use or benefit of the Unit and its residents. The District, all landowners and residents of the Unit, all employees, quests and invitees of the landowners and residents of the Unit, all governmental vehicles, all public utility vehicles and all emergency vehicles shall have access to the On-site Roadways.(Ap. T.3 P.59) On-site Roadways will The be

- 4 -

financed by non-ad valorem assessments levied against all landowners within the Unit. Ad-valorem taxes will not be utilized to finance the project.

An Order to Show Cause was entered by the Circuit Court on July 12, 1990, giving due and proper notice as required by law to the State of Florida and the several property owners, taxpayers and citizens District, including of the nonresidents owning property or subject to taxation therein, and all others having or claiming any right, title or interest in property to be affected by the issuance of the bonds or to be affected in any way thereby, was duly published by the Clerk of the Circuit Court in the Palm Beach Post, a newspaper published and of general circulation in Palm Beach County once each week for three consecutive weeks, to wit on September 3, 1990, September 10, 1990 and September 17, 1990, the first publication thereof having been made at least twenty days prior to September 26, 1990, the date set for the hearing, all as required by Chapter 75, Florida Statutes, as appears from the affidavit and proof of publication, containing a true copy of the Order to Show Cause, made by the publisher of the Palm Beach Post.

The Bond Validation hearing was held on September 26, 1990, with each party offering testimony and other documentary evidence in support of their respective position.

On November 16, 1990, the Honorable Judge W. Matthew Stevenson entered a final order that the Bonds not be

- 5 -

validated.(Ap. T.1 P.1-7) The Circuit Court found in part that "the intended use of the proceeds of this Bond issue serves no valid public purpose", and that "the District did not meet the requirements of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, as enumerated in Sections 163.501-163.522, Florida Statutes." It is from this final order that this appeal ensues.

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

### POINT ONE

Whether the trial court erred in finding that the construction of publicly owned controlled access On-site Roadways within the District's Unit of Development No. 31 does not constitute a public purpose for the issuance of Bonds.

#### POINT TWO

Whether the District's compliance with the requirements of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, and the timing of said compliance in the creation of controlled access public roads is a collateral issue outside of the scope of the bond validation hearing.

#### POINT ONE

WHETHER THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN OF THAT THE CONSTRUCTION FINDING PUBLICLY OWNED CONTROLLED ACCESS ROADWAYS WITHIN THE ON-SITE DISTRICT'S UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 31 DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC PURPOSE FOR THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS.

Chapter 59-994 Laws of Florida as amended states in Section 1 that the Northern Palm Beach County Water Control District was created:

> "for the purpose of reclaiming and draining. . . and . . . making the lands within said District available and habitable for the settlement and agriculture, and for public convenience, welfare, utility and benefit, and for the other purposes stated in Act," (Emphasis supplied).(Ap. т.14 (the) P.311)

The Florida Legislature in that same Section 1 of the Chapter 59-994 Laws of Florida, as amended, has also:

> "determined, declared and enacted that . . the drainage, reclamation and protection of said lands from the effects of water and the control of water and protection of (the lands of the District) from the effects of water . . . and thereby the making of said lands habitable, available for agricultural and settlement purposes by drainage, urban reclamation and improvement, and the creation of said District with the powers vested in it by (the) Act, are in the interest of and conducive to public welfare, health and convenience." (Emphasis supplied) (Ap. T.14 P.311)

Section 2 of the Chapter 59-994 Laws of Florida, as amended, makes the provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statues, including all the powers and authorities mentioned in or confirmed by Chapter 298, applicable to the District.

- 8 -

Furthermore, Section 3 of the Chapter 59-994 Laws of Florida, as amended, gives the District the power:

"to convey and dispose of (real property within the (District) as may be necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes, or any of the purposes, of (the) Act and Chapter 298, Florida Statutes . . . and in furtherance of the purposes and intent of (the) Act and Chapter 298, Florida Statutes, to construct, improve, pave and maintain roadways and roads necessary and convenient to provide access and efficient development of to areas made suitable and available for cultivation, other settlement and beneficial use and development as a result of the drainage and reclamation operations of the District . . . and to exercise all other powers necessary, convenient or proper in connection with any of the powers or duties of said District stated in (the) Act." (Emphasis supplied)

Chapter 89-462 Laws of Florida amended the Chapter 59-994 Laws of Florida, in part, to grant the District power to dedicate or create roads for the exclusive use and benefit of the District's inhabitants, or any subset of them. In particular Section 6 of Chapter 89-462 states:

Section 6. Roads for exclusive use and benefit of a unit of development and its residents. -- It is

- 9 -

hereby found and declared that among the many residential causes of deterioration in neighborhoods are the proliferation of crime, flow, and excessive noise excessive automobile levels from automobile traffic. It is to the benefit of the land in the district and its ultimate users and residents to include provisions in a water management plan pursuant to and in furtherance of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, Sections 163.501-163.522, Florida Statutes, for roads for the exclusive use and benefit of a unit of development and its residents. The district, therefore, has the power:

(1) to provide, by resolution in a water management plan for a unit of development, roads for the exclusive use and benefit of a unit of development and its landowners, residents, and invitees to control ingress and egress.

(2) to finance and maintain said roads and their associated elements as a part of a water management plan.

(3) to construct and maintain security structures to control the use of said roads.

(4) to make provision for access by fire, police, and emergency vehicles and personnel for the protection of life and property in the unit of development.

(5) to include, the annual assessment of taxes as authorized, sufficient funds to finance and maintain said roads as a part of a water management plan for a unit of development.

(6) to adopt, by resolution of the board, rules and regulations for the control of traffic, noise levels, crime, and the use of the roads by those authorized. . . . (Emphasis supplied).

(7) Upon receipt of written consent of the owners of 75 percent of the land located with a unit of development, the board of supervisors shall be authorized to provide by resolution in a water management plan for th exclusive use of roads as permitted under this section. (Emphasis supplied) (Ap. T.14 P.396-397) Section 163.514, Florida statutes states:

Unless prohibited by ordinance, the board of any district shall be empowered to:

(12) Undertake innovative approaches to securing neighborhoods from crime, such as crime prevention through environmental design, environmental security, and defensible space.

(13) Privatize, close, vacate, plan or replan streets, roads, sidewalks, and alleys, subject to the concurrence of the local governing body and, if required, the state Department of Transportation.

The District has clearly been granted the legislative authority to construct publicly owned controlled access On-site Roadways. But in determining the validity of the Program Two Bonds to be issued to finance the construction of the publicly owned controlled access On-site Roadways, it is also necessary to determine that this authority is consistent with Florida constitutional law and the fundamental doctrine of public purpose.

Article III, Section ll(a) of the Florida Constitution states, in part:

There shall be no special law or general law of local application pertaining to: . . . (10) disposal of public property, including any interest therein, for private purposes: (11) vacation of roads; . . .

Additionally, in Article VII, Section 10 of the Florida Constitution it is stated that:

Neither the state nor any county, school district, municipality, special district, or agency of any of them, shall become a joint

- 11 -

owner with, or stockholder of, or give, lend or use its taxing power or credit to aid any corporation, association, partnership or person; . . (Emphasis supplied)

Therefore, as a matter of state constitutional law, public monies must not be used to advance private purposes, including the construction or maintenance of private roads in which the District has no property rights or interest. See State v. Hillsborough County, 151 So. 712 (Fla. 1933). However, when both public and private interests are served by the incurrence of public debt or expenditure of public funds, Florida public purpose is predominant, the and the Constitution does not prohibit such incurrence of debt or expenditures of funds. See e.g., State v. Jacksonville Port Authority, 204 So.2d 881 (Fla. 1967); State v. Inter-American Center Authority, 143 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1962).

In paragraph 21 of the Final Order, (Ap. T.1 P.6) the Circuit Court found that Hansen Florida, II, Inc., the corporation, will benefit by the issuance of the Bonds. The Circuit Court then, in paragraph 23 of the Final Order, (Ap. T.1 P.7) concluded that no public purpose existed. The Circuit Court erred in reaching this conclusion based solely on the fact that the corporation would benefit from the issuance of the bonds since the law in Florida is clear that a public benefit can exist even when a private party also benefits.

In State of Florida v. Housing Finance Authority of

- 12 -

<u>Polk County</u>, 376 So.2d 1158 (Fla. 1979) The court held that under the Constitution, it is immaterial to the propriety of an expenditure that the primary beneficiary of a project is a private party, if the public interest, even though indirect, is present and sufficiently strong.

The mere fact that someone engaged in private business for private gain will be benefited by every public improvement undertaken by government or governmental agency does not deprive such improvements of their public character nor detract from the fact that they primarily serve a public purpose. <u>State v. Board of Control</u>, 66 So.2d 209. (Fla. 1953).

The test for public purpose of highways or roads is not how much use is made of the road, but whether the road is available to the public. The District does not believe, however, that every roadway built by a governmental entity must be open to every member of the public, if it is built for other public purposes, e.g., the access to other public works. Furthermore, the right of a citizen to use the public streets is not absolute and unconditional but may be controlled and regulated in the interest of the public good. <u>State Ex Rel. Nicholas v. Headley</u>, 40 So.2d 80 (Fla. 1950). Padgett v. Bay County, 187 So.2d 410, 411 (Fla. 1st DCA 1966).

In <u>State v. Housing Finance Authority of Polk County</u>, Supra. the court further held that what constitutes a public purpose for issuance of bonds is, in the first instance, a

- 13 -

question for the legislature to determine and its opinion should be given great weight. The court further stated that a legislative declaration of public purpose for the issuance of bonds is presumed valid and should be deemed correct unless it is so clearly erroneous as to be beyond the power of the legislature. See also <u>State v. Sunrise Lakes, Phase</u> <u>II, Special Rec.</u> 383 So.2d 631 (Fla. 1980).

The trial court also erred in its decision, in paragraph 23 of the Final Order, (Ap. T.1 P.7) in finding that the intended use of the proceeds of the Program Two Bond issue serves no valid public purpose. The State Legislature, by its enactment of Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida as amended т.14 P.307-399) and supplemented, (Ap. and particularly by Chapter 89-462, (Ap. T.14 P.389-399) clearly found a public purpose in designating roads for the exclusive use and benefit of a unit of development and its residents. In addition, the Board of the District, the legislative governing body of the District, found in a resolution adopted by the Board on September 26, 1990, that the project is a public purpose of the District. (Ap. T.3 P.45, 46) The District Engineer testified that the On-site Roadway improvements included paving of the roadway, the striping, the signage, the landscaping within the roadways, irrigation to maintain the landscaping and sodding, bridges and overpasses, culverts, street lighting, security gate houses and secondary drainage systems consisting of storm drainage,

pipes, inlets, manholes and surface drainage. The District Engineer further testified that these improvements would be Northern Palm Beach County Water Control owned by the District. (Ap. T.3 P.27) Thus, the evidence clearly shows are to be publicly owned site roadways that the on improvements and were declared by the District's legislative Legislature to be public purpose body and the State improvements. The evidence was undisputed.

well-settled tests The courts employ certain to determine the validity of legislation enacted for the protection of the public health, safety, welfare or morals. All legislation passed by the Florida Legislature is presumed by the courts of Florida to be constitutional if there is any reasonable theory supporting the ends of the legislation. Jones v. Gray & Sons, 430 So.2d 8 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). Legislation is valid if it may reasonably be construed as expedient for the protection of the public health, safety, welfare or morals. Courts may not substitute their judgment as to the wisdom and policy of the law for that of the Florida Legislature. It has also been said that legislative declarations of public purpose are presumed valid and are to be considered correct unless patently erroneous. State v. Finance, 495 So.2đ 183 (Fla. 1986) Division of Bond (upholding validation of home ownership mortgage revenue bond issue); Zedeck v. Indian Trace Community Development District, 428 So.2d 647 (Fla. 1983) (upholding validation of

- 15 -

water and sewer system expansion bonds).

However, the question of what is or is not a public purpose is a question of law, and though unquestionably the Florida Legislature has large discretion in selecting the object for which public monies are expended, the Legislature's decision on what constitutes public purpose is not final. <u>City of Daytona Beach v. King</u>, 181 So. 1, 5 (Fla. 1938).

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