2-23

FILED
SID J. WHITE
JAN 30 1991
CLERK, SUPREME COURT
By _____ Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NUMBER: 77,098

NORTHERN PALM BEACH COUNTY
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, a
drainage district of the
State of Florida,

Appellant

v.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, et al.,

Appellee

On Appeal from a Bond
Validation in the Circuit
Court in and for Palm
Beach County, Florida
Case No.: CL-90-6844-AH

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

DAVID H. BLUDWORTH,
STATE ATTORNEY
FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
LESLIE M. RITCH,
ASSISTANT STATE ATTORNEY
Florida Bar No. 396745
224 Datura Street
Harvey Building - 8th Floor
West Palm Beach,
Florida 33401
(407) 355-3720

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

The State generally agrees with the Statement of the Facts and of the Case as expressed by the District. However, certain facts warrant further clarification, as outlined below.

First of all, the District has stated that the proceeds from the issuance of the Water Control and Improvement Bonds, Unit of Development No. 31, Program Two (the "Bonds"), would be used to finance the Program Two Improvements (the "Improvements"), i.e., the on-site roadways and associated landscaping. However, a closer reading of the District's Water Management Plan reveals that the contemplated Improvements include paving, striping, signage, irrigation, bridges, an overpass, culverts, street lighting, a secondary drainage system, security gatehouses to limit access to those roadways, and extensive landscaping to provide an overall theme of a "Caribbean Island effect." (Ap.: T. 4 P. 170-171).

In addition, in order to fully appreciate the context in which this controversy arose, it is helpful to note that Unit of Development No. 31 (the "Unit") is more commonly known as Ballen Isles, part of the JDM Country Club. The Unit is being developed by Hansen-Florida II, Incorporated, et al. (the "Corporation"), and will include single family residences, multi-family housing, park areas, and three golf courses. (Ap.: T. 4 P. 166).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

POINT I.

Florida's general constitutional prohibition against governmental aid to corporations was properly upheld by the Trial Court when it refused to validate these Bonds. See Art. VII, ss. 10, Fla. Const.

No valid public purpose is served in this case by financing the costs of construction of (1) roadways within an exclusive private development; (2) security gatehouses which will be used to bar the public from using those roadways; and (3) landscaping of those roadways to fulfill an overall theme of providing a Caribbean Island effect for the development.

POINT II.

The District had no authority under the provisions of its enabling legislation, i.e., Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida, as amended and supplemented, particularly by Chapter 89-462, Laws of Florida, to issue the Bonds. Such legislation required the District to comply with the Safe Neighborhoods Act, ss. 163.501 - 163.522, Florida Statutes (1989). Since the District disregarded the requirements of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, the Trial Court properly denied validation of the Bonds.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE INTENDED USE OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE BONDS BY THE DISTRICT TO FINANCE THE COST OF CONSTRUCTION OF SECURITY GATEHOUSES TO LIMIT ACCESS TO THE UNIT, AND THE PAVING, STRIPING, SODDING, AND LANDSCAPING OF THOSE LIMITED ACCESS ROADWAYS IN THE UNIT SERVES NO VALID PUBLIC PURPOSE.

Article VII, Section 10, of the Florida Constitution provides a general prohibition against government giving aid to corporations. Specifically, it states that:

Neither the state nor any county, school district, municipality, special district, or agency of any of them, shall become a joint owner with, or stockholder of, or give, lend or use its taxing power or credit to aid any corporation, association, partnership, or person ...

While several exceptions are enumerated in this section, none of these are applicable to the instant case. Art. VII, ss. 10 (a) - (d), Fla. Const.

In addition to these enumerated exceptions, the case law in this area has developed certain other exceptions. These other exceptions involve bonds which were issued for proper public purposes.

Although the test in this case would not be the "paramount public purpose" test, the public interest still must be "present and sufficiently strong." Linscott v. Orange County Industrial Development Authority, 443 So.2d 97 (Fla. 1983); State v. Housing Finance Authority of Polk County, 376 So.2d 1158 (Fla.

1979); State v. Putnam County Development Authority, 249 So.2d 6 (Fla. 1971).

In addition, this Court has stated several times that:

public bodies cannot appropriate public funds indiscriminately, or for the benefit of private parties, where there is not a reasonable and adequate public interest.

Linscott v. Orange County Industrial Development Authority, 443 So.2d 97 (Fla. 1983); State v. Housing Finance Authority of Polk County, 376 So.2d 1158 (Fla. 1979); State v. Putnam County Development Authority, 249 So.2d 6 (Fla. 1971).

The purpose of Article VII, Section 10, has been stated to be to:

protect public funds and resources from being exploited in assisting or promoting private ventures when the public would be at most only incidentally benefitted.

State v. Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency, 392 So.2d 875 (Fla. 1980); Bannon v. Port of Palm Beach District, 246 So.2d 737 (1971).

Clearly, what we have in the instant case is a situation where public resources would be exploited by assisting the Corporation in its development of the Unit as an exclusive private residential complex. It is also clear that it is the public purpose, as opposed to the private purpose, which is, at most, insignificant and merely incidental to the benefits which the Corporation will reap by the issuance of the Bonds.

The proceeds of these Bonds will be used to construct, among other things, roadways and security gatehouses. These

gatehouses will be placed on the roadways at the entrance points to the Unit, i.e., the Ballen Isles Development. (Ap.: T. 3 P. 33 and 34). The purpose of these gatehouses, as was determined at the validation hearing, is to bar the general public from entering the Unit. (Ap.: T. 3 P. 58, 59, 65 and 119).

Of all the cases which the District has cited for the proposition that a valid public purpose exists in this case, the one that is most analogous to this case is State v. Sunrise Lakes Phase II Special Recreation District, 383 So.2d 632 (Fla. 1980).

The issue in Sunrise Lakes, Id., was whether a valid public purpose existed for the issuance of bonds by a recreation district for the purpose of purchasing recreation facilities within a condominium complex. Such facilities were to be available for use by the general public as well as by the condominium owners. The Court found that the bond issue served a valid public purpose. However, the Court stated that:

The key is the availability of the facilities to the general public. Without that availability, there is no public purpose.

Id. at 633

Here, there is no availability to the general public. In fact, what we have instead are barriers, i.e., the gatehouses, which will deny the public access. Therefore, under the reasoning of Sunrise Lakes, Id., there is no valid public purpose for the issuance of the Bonds.

The State is not unmindful of the fact that a legislative declaration of a public purpose carries with it a presumption of validity, and should be given great weight. State v. Sunrise Lakes Phase II Special Recreation District, 383 So. 2d 631 (Fla. 1980); State v. Housing Finance Authority of Polk County, 376 So.2d 1158 (Fla. 1979). However, such declarations are not final. City of Daytona Beach v. King, 181 So. 1 (Fla. 1938).

In City of Daytona Beach, Id. at 3, discussing what is a public purpose, the Court stated that:

where the purpose declared by statute to be such may in fact not be a (public) purpose, or where the purpose may be by the Constitution expressly or by implication excluded as a (public) purpose, or where the execution of the purpose may involve a violation of organic law, the courts will ultimately determine whether it is or is not a permissible (public) purpose, and in doing so will consider the pertinent facts that may be peculiar to the particular case as well as the controlling law in the premises.

*

A review of the pertinent facts in this case requires that the legislative declaration of public purpose not be upheld, as no valid public purpose, in fact, exists.

In effect, the Corporation seeks to create, through the Improvements, a walled-city for the privileged few who can afford to reside there, where the public's rights of access and

* The term "public" has been substituted for the term "municipal" as it appears in the original opinion, for purposes of this brief. No change in meaning results from such substitution.

travel will be severely restricted, and not as to just time, place, and manner.

As for the benefits to the Corporation, the construction of the security gatehouses and the roadways, the landscaping public from the use of the roadways, will serve to increase the value of the Unit. The Corporation will, therefore, be able to sell the homesites within the Unit at higher prices and will, thereby, realize greater profits.

In addition, the Corporation's profits will also be increased by the use of low-cost financing for these improvements. That is to say, that by using these tax-exempt Bonds to finance the cost of the security gatehouses, roadways, landscaping, etc., rather than using more conventional and, therefore, more expensive financing methods, the Corporation will be saving money resulting in another increase in its profits.

This is precisely the kind of exploitation of public resources which Article VII, Section 10, of the Florida Constitution prohibits.

Since there is no valid public purpose for the issuance of the Bonds, the District lacks the Authority to issue the Bonds.

POINT II

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS WAS NOT AUTHORIZED BY LAW, AS THE DISTRICT FAILED TO COMPLY WITH ITS ENABLING LEGISLATION BY NOT MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA STATUTES.

The District is clearly mistaken in its assertions that compliance with Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (1989), and the timing of such compliance, are merely collateral issues outside the scope of the bond validation hearing.

The issue of the District's compliance with Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (1989), and, therefore, with its enabling legislation, Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida, goes directly to the District's authority to issue the Bonds.

As for the timing of the District's compliance with Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (1989), and also, therefore, with the District's enabling legislation, there is no expression by the Legislature that the District may comply at some time after the issuance of the Bonds. Therefore, there is no authority for the District's argument that it may comply with Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (1989), at a later date.

Contrary to the District's belief that this issue can be analogized to the area of contracts and their affect on validation proceedings, this issue goes directly to the District's enabling legislation and, therefore, to the District's authority to issue the bonds.

The determination of whether a public body has such authority is within the scope of a bond validation hearing. State v. City of Panama City Beach, 529 So.2d 250, 251 (Fla. 1988).

The District was organized under, and operates according to, the provisions of Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida, as amended and supplemented, and Chapter 298, Florida Statutes (1989). The District was created to preserve and protect water resources, for sanitary or agricultural purposes or when the same may be conducive to public health, convenience or welfare. The District was subsequently empowered to construct and maintain public utilities, including water and sewer, drainage, irrigation, water management, roadway or related activities including offsite improvements in Palm Beach County in an area more particularly described in the Special Act creating the District, as amended. (Ap.: T. 4 P. 164).

The District's enabling legislation was more recently amended by Chapter 89-462, Laws of Florida. This amendment empowered the District:

to include provision in a water management plan pursuant to and in furtherance of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, ss. 163.501 - 163.522, Florida Statutes, for roads for the exclusive use and benefit of a unit of development and its residents. (Emphasis supplied.)

The resolution which the District passed and adopted on September 26, 1990, declared:

that the designation of roads for the exclusive use and benefits of a Unit of

Development under the provisions of Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida, as amended and supplemented, and in furtherance of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, Section 163.501 through 163.522 Florida Statutes, is a public purpose for which public money may be borrowed, expended, loaned or granted. (Emphasis supplied.)

(Ap.: T. 13 P. 305 and 306)

This resolution, as adopted by the District, is not in compliance with the enabling legislation. Specifically, the resolution does not comply with Chapter 89-462, Laws of Florida. The District, in this resolution, conveniently left out a key phrase, i.e., "pursuant to," when referring to the Safe Neighborhoods Act, Section 163.501 - 163.522, Florida Statutes (1989).

In addition, the District admits that it did not meet the requirements of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, as enumerated in Sections 163.501 - 163.522, Florida Statutes (1989). (Ap.: T. 3 P. 56, 57, 58, 61 and 62). For example, it is uncontroverted that the District did not form a safe neighborhood district through one or more of the methods established in ss. 163.506, 163.508, and 163.511. Section 163.504, Fla. Stat. (1989). (Ap.: T. 3 P. 55). Neither, for example, did the District prepare and adopt the mandated safe neighborhood improvement plan. Section 163.516, Fla. Stat. (1989). (Ap.: T. 3 P. 57).

The term "pursuant to" is defined in the dictionary as:

in the course of carrying out: in
conformance to or agreement with: according
to.

Webster's Third New International Dictionary, Unabridged 1848 1976); and Black's Law Dictionary 1112 (5th ed. 1979).

This Court has adopted a similar definition, stating that:

"Pursuant" means conformable to, agreeable to, or in accordance with.

Potter v. Realty Securities Corporation, 77 Fla. 768, 82 So. 298 1919).

According to well-settled rules of statutory construction, the intent of the Legislature in enacting a statute must be determined from the language of the statute itself. S.R.G. Corp. v. Department of Revenue, 365 So.2d 687 (Fla. 1978); Thayer v. State, 335 So.2d 815 (Fla. 1976); Van Pelt v. Hilliard, 75 Fla. 792, 78 So. 693 (1918).

In construing the language of a statute, the Supreme Court of Florida has consistently adhered to the "plain meaning rule." Public Health Trust of Dade County v. Lopez, 531 So.2d 946 (Fla. 1988); Holly v. Auld, 450 So.2d 217 (Fla. 1984); Rinker Materials Corp. v. City of North Miami, 286 So.2d 552 (Fla. 1973), conformed to 288 So.2d 536 (Fla. 1974); Van Pelt v. Hilliard, 75 Fla. 792, 78 So. 693 (1918). Simply stated, the language used in a statute must be given its plain and obvious meaning.

In addition, it is assumed that the Legislature knows the meaning of words, and that it expresses its intent through the use of the words found in the statute. S.R.G. Corp. v. Department of Revenue, 365 So. 2d 687 (Fla. 1978); Thayer v.

State, 335 So.2d 815 (Fla. 1976); Rinker Materials Corp. v. City of North Miami, 286 So.2d 522 (Fla. 1973), conformed to 288 So.2d 536 (Fla. 1974); Brooks v. Anastasia Mosquito Control District, 148 So.2d 64 (Fla. 1st DCA 1963); Van Pelt v. Hilliard, 75 Fla. 792, 78 So. 693 (1918).

When these principles are applied to the case at hand, we must conclude that the Legislature, when enacting Chapter 89-462, Laws of Florida, knew the meaning of the term "pursuant to." Further, we must conclude that by the inclusion of the term "pursuant to" in this enabling legislation the Legislature was expressing its intent that the District's water management plan must be "pursuant to," i.e., in conformance to or agreement with or according to the Safe Neighborhoods Act, Sections 163.501 - 163.522, Florida Statutes (1989), not merely "in furtherance of" that Act, in order to designate roads for the exclusive use and benefit of the Unit and its residents.

The District's admitted failure to comply with its enabling legislation, Chapter 59-994, Laws of Florida, as amended and supplemented, particularly by Chapter 89-462, Laws of Florida, by not meeting the requirements of the Safe Neighborhoods Act, Sections 163.501 - 163.522, Florida Statutes (1989), means that the District lacks the requisite authority to issue the Bonds at issue here.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the State of Florida respectfully submits that the Trial Court properly found that the intended use of the proceeds of the Bonds by the District to finance the cost of construction of security gatehouses to limit access to the Unit, an exclusive, private residential complex; and the paving, striping, sodding and landscaping of those limited access roadways in the Unit serves no valid public purpose.

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